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Cedar Grove was built during the years 1831 to 1833 by James G@ 
Torrence (the name is also frequently spelled "Torrance") on a large 
plantation he inherited from his father, Hugh Hugh Torrence purchased a 
667-acre tract of land inol779,and in 1796 he owned at least 1300 acres 
A surveyor's plat of that year notes the existence of Torrence's "brick 
house" on his plantation James Torrence was the only son of Hugh and his 
wife, Isabella, and he inherited the property after their deaths in 1816. 
James was engaged in a wide variety of enterprises, for along with running 
a large and productive plantation that used about forty-five slaves and 
sent cotton to the Charleston market, he served as justice of the peace, 
operated a store, and mined gold on a neighbor's property. He also served 
as treasurer of Hopewell Presbyterian Church and as trustee of Davidson 
College 0 

By 1831 James Torrence was able to begin erecting a large brick house 
on his plantation, which is today the largest and finest brick house of 
the period in the area. The current owner of Cedar Grove has several 
receipts from the construction of the house, wbich include tin and copper 
from Phelps and Peck of New York; sash cord, wood screws, locks, and other 
hardware from Folger, Lamb, and Co. of the same city; pipe from Joseph 
Forman of Philadelphia; and labor including painting, scraping handrail and 
varnishing, and II gl asing 600 and 30 lits of sashes," etc., from J W. 
Thompson. These records illustrate the degree to which, despite the diffi­
culty of travel and shipping at the time, the construction and finishing of 
a fine house Was dependant upon manufactured items from the northeast, a 
source with which James Torrence, a merchant, was perhaps more familiar 
than most people of the area. 

In the will of James G. Torrence, probated in 1848, he left the 
plantation to his seven youngest children and his third wife, Margaret 
Allison. She remained on the plantation, which, apparently with the help 
of overseers, continued to flourish. The 1850 census listed Cedar Grove 
as having 2,481 acres and sixty-five slaves An 1862 agreement notes the 
employment of �J�a�~�e�s� Brown by Margaret Torrence to superintend her farm. 
This document is especially interesting for it outlines in elaborate detail 
the duties of the overseer w1d the treatment of livestock and slaves ArnonE 
the �~�s�i�g�n�m�e�n�t�s� described in the eighteen different articles of the agree­
ment, he was to "arouse the Negroes in the mornings by the sound of his 
horn," to "have corned [sic] shelled regular," and to "take down the number 
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of cows sheep & hogs & have them marked & if any missing to watch at nig t 
they are not cooked by some of the Negroes " Mrs Torrence apparently took SOT e 
interest in the running of the plantation, for the second article specifies 
that Brown is to act "as may suit the wishes and best interest of said Mrs. 
M Torrence to do and have done whatever she may direct from time to time " 

Some years later, in 1868, James Torrence's son, Richard; who had been 
assigned the home tract in his father's will, purchased his mother's life 
estate in the land for $5,505. By 1888 he and his wife, Eliza, had mortgaged 
the property and moved to Charlotte, where he became a county tax collector. 
He never lived at Cedar Grove again, and the mortgage was paid in full by 1891 
When he died at the age of ninety-three in 1927, his estate went to his eleven 
children. A daughter, Delia T. Banks, received the home place in the 1928 Ian 
division During the long period of absentee ownership, the house fell into 
disrepair; but through the efforts of Delia's son, Richard Torrence Banks, and 
his wife, Belle, the house was repaired and refurbished in 1949 Richard, who 
inherited the property, including the house and 152 8 acres, in 1962, is the 
present owner and resident 

Cedar Grove is especially representative of the Piedmont houses of Federa 
and Greek Revival eras in its massing and overall proportions. The applied 
porches were executed on a smaller scale than many of those in eastern North 
Carolina in the same period Continuity with earlier buildings in the area 
is especially visible in the corbeled brick cornice of the gables, a standard 
feature in eighteenth and early nineteenth century brick houses of the upper 
Piedmont. The effect of the Greek Revival on an essentially traditional 
design is found in the Doric porch and the handsome interior woodwork, especia ly 
the mantels. Clarity and harmony remain, however, the dominant characteristic 
of the structure, the largest and probably the finest antebellum brick house 
in Mecklenburg County. 
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tional Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law 
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Title v 

Director, state Department of 
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Mecklenbllrg County Records) State Department of Archives and History) Raleigh, 
North Carolina. (Subgroups Deeds, Wills) 

Torrence Family Papers) in possession of Richard T. Banks, Cedar Grove, 
Huntersville, North Carolina. 
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